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The Columbia River gill net boat is a class of commercial fishing vessel in common use on 
the Columbia River since its introduction in the late 1860's. It is a small boat averaging 
about twenty five feet in length and set up for a crew of two men. In terms of its hull 
configuration, interior organization and superstructure, the boat is designed exclusively , 
for use in the gill net fishery.

This nomination concerns an archetypal example of the gill net boat built between 1913 and 
1916. It has a length of 26 feet, a beam of 72% inches and a carvel-built hull consisting 
of Port Orford cedar planks on white oak ribs. The decking, cabin, and pilot house are 
also of cedar construction, while oak is used throughout the boat wherever increased 
strength and durability are necessary, such as in the keel, combings and guards, and in 
the bow and stemposts.

The hull is double-ended or sharp at both the bow and stern, with a rounded V-bottom and a 
deck that rises gently fore and aft. When viewed from above, the hull outline appears as 
a roughly symmetrical pointed oval tapering a bit more gradually at the stern.

Oak guards rim the upper edge of the hull where it joins the narrow deck or washboards. 
Along the inside, the deck terminates in a raised combing which flares outward crossing 
the deck at the fish locker just forward of the cabin were it forms a guiding edge for 
the net chute.

Of particular interest in the construction of this vessel is the decking itself, which 
consists of narrow cedar strips laminated edge to edge and bent to the curvature of the 
hull. Caulking cotton packed between the strips makes the deck water tight. This is a 
rare feature characteristic of the earliest gill net boats and a method of construction 
considered obsolete for more than 50 years.

The cabin and pilot house are positioned well aft of center to provide working space near 
the bow. Both structures are half drum-shaped around the front and square across the back. 
The pilot house sits atop the cabin like a clerestory or second tier providing a nearly 
unobstructed 180° view for a man standing at the helm.

The engine, now missing, was originally mounted on the floor of the cabin. The earliest 
power plant used in these boats was a massive 5 to 7 horsepower, one cylinder, two cycle, 
gasoline motor weighing several hundred pounds. It is said that in the early years these 
engines were generally thought of as auxilury power due in part to their hard starting, 
lack of dependability and the high cost of fuel. They were mostly relied upon for running 
long distances or when bucking the tide. Otherwise the fishermen preferred to row the 
stout 25 foot craft. Although most other boats in use during this period were converted 
to gasoline motors, the construction of this boat indicates that it was originally fitted 
with an engine.

In terms of its functional organization as a working vessel, this type of gillnet boat is 
referred to as a bow picker, which means that the net is retrieved from the forward part 
of the vessel where it is piled systematically in bights (folds laid back and forth on the 
bottom of the boat). The open part at the front of the vessel is termed the net room,
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which also serves as the work area. The fisherman stands in the bow where he pulls the 
net in across a roller fastened to the starboard gunwa-le. As the 200 fathom net is 
emptied of fish, it is carefully folded just forward of the fish locker, which extends 
across the widest portion of the vessel immediately in front of the cabin. By storing th 
net in this fashion it is possible when laying out the net to lay it back over the stern 
without readjusting its position. Another roller is located on the forward edge of the 
fish locker which helps to move the net up on to the deck before it is pulled along the 
net chute and dropped over the stern a length at a time.

Presently this particular gill net boat is missing a number of fittings, although it has 
been modified very little since it was first completed. In addition to the engine, the 
propeller, the propeller shaft and rudder are gone. So is most of the original picking 
gear, consisting mostly of net rollers. The cabin door, steering wheel, handrails, chafi 
irons and all brass hardware items have been removed. Fortunately most of these are re­ 
placeable standard components that vary only slightly in their design over the years. A 
careful restoration program has already begun using fittings salvaged from other boats of 
a slightly later period, and possibly an engine of a type similar to the original equip­ 
ment.

More importantly, the hull and superstructure are in sound condition and have never been 
modified. Most of the essential wood fittings are intact including the guards, combings, 
pin blocks, and oar lock blocks. During the many years the vessel was in service the on! 
major improvement or modernization consists of the installation of a power roller driven 
off the engine with shafts and gears. This was probably added in the 1940's to assist in 
retrieving the 1200 foot net, which was previously pulled in by hand.

The boat is now located inside of an old cannery building resting on a wooden cradle. 
Following restoration it will be moved to Skamokawa, a nearby fishing community, where 
it will be installed in a permanent interpretive display.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built between 1913 and 1916, this double-ended Columbia River gillnet boat represents the 
second generation in the development of a specific type of fishing vessel designed for 
commercial salmon gillnetting on the Columbia River. Its construction characteristics and 
early date indicate that it would have been among the first of the gillnet boats built 
for a gasoline engine.

Earlier versions of the Columbia River gillnetter were open sailboats from 22 to 24 feet 
in length. The first of these actually used on the Columbia River was built in 1869 by 
J. J. Griffin of San Francisco for George and Robert Hume. Previously, Griffin had 
constructed a similar vessel for a Sacramento River fisherman nicknamed "Greek Joe u . 
Prior to this time, Whitehall boats and skiffs were generally used in the west coast salmoi 
fishery, although they were not particularly well suited to this purpose. The salmon 
gillnet boat as conceived by Griffin was unlike any other type of small craft then used 
in United States fisheries.

In a detailed description of the gillnet boat, which was by then in common use along the 
west coast of the United States from lower California to Alaska, J. W. Collins writing in 
the 1890 Bulletin of the United States Fish Commission made the following observations.

It is an open* carvel-built, centerboard craft, sharp,forward and aft, the ends 
being shaped nearly alike moderately concave at and below the water line, and 
with rather full convex lines above water. It has a long, low floor, round 
bilge, and flares slightly at the top. It has a very shallow keel, and has little 
or no rake to the stem and stern post, both of which are straight, with the 
exception'of the rounded fore foot. It is decked for 2 or 3 feet at each end, 
and has washboards extending along both sides. A coaming 2 or 3 inches high 
runs around on the inner edge of the washboards and the decked spaces of the 
bow and stern, making the open part of the boat of an oval form. It has four 
thwarts, and three rowlocks (each with single thole-pin) on each side. A 
single mast, upon which is set a spritsail, is stepped well forward. Oars 
are carried and used when there is no wind.

Coll ins refers to this as the Columbia River salmon boat, noting that it was most commonly 
encountered on the Columbia River.

Collins also points out that the fishermen would rig their sail as a temporary tent when 
gone from home for extended periods. One end of the mast was supported on the tiller 
which was tilted up for that purpose, the mast then became a ridgepole and the canvas was 
spread over it between the gunwale. Using this device it was possible to sleep on the
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floor of the boat out of the weather while anchored near shore. Also, each of the 
boats was equipped with a small oil cook stove for heating canned food from a supply 
kept on board.

The double-ended design is particularly suited for fishing in rough water as such a 
small vessel has relatively little freeboard. With its net out, the boat drifts for 
considerable periods and is subject to the effects of waves pounding from either 
direction. A stern design that divides the waves allowing them to pass on either side 
of the boat is more seaworthy under these conditions than one with a square transom that 
stops a portion of each wave abruptly. A large wave might wash over a square stern, 
where a similar wave would pass a double ended craft without any serious effects.

With the introduction of the gasoline marine engine in the early part of this century, 
the use of sails in the gill net fishery was slowly discontinued in favor of one cylinder 
inboard motors. At first, sailboats were simply converted by installing a gasoline 
engine, but shortly after 1910 boats were designed to be fitted with a motor and the 
sail was eliminated entirely. As there was no sail to interfere, these newer boats were 
equipped with a small cabin and pilot house, although they retained the same basic doubl 
ended hull configuration that had been preferred for the past 40 years.

In the late 1930's, however, when marine engines became more common and reliable, the 
double ended hull was gradually phased out and the square stern came into general use. 
This refinement provided a slightly better hull speed, although admittedly it did not 
make as good a "sea boat". However, with an improved source of power, stability in 
rough water became less of a concern as most of the fishermen operated fairly close to 
shore. Squaring off the stern did not otherwise affect the basic design of the vessel 
of its functional organization. Further improvements during this period included the 
introduction of a power driven roller to assist with the difficult work of hauling in 
the net.

Later hull modifications in the 1940's were made in response to the availability of far 
more powerful engines. The stern was further widened and flattened across the bottom 
much like a power launch with a planning hull. Again, this had little effect on the 
working arrangement of the boat. It was still easily recognizable as a gillnetter.

The net itself has been greatly improved in recent years and this new development has 
been accompanied by important changes in the pattern of fishing activity. The earliest 
fishing gear consisted of linen nets which could be fished only at night or during 
periods of muddy water when the fish could not see well enough to avoid them. Later, 
with the introduction of synthetic twines in the net fishing industry, it became possibli 
to fish during daylight hours even in clear water. The basic design of the gill net, 
however, including its size, shape and type of mesh are essentially unchanged since it 
was first used in the west coast salmon fishery.
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The first commercial cannery on the Columbia River was built in 1866 on Eagle Cliff in 
Wahkiakum County. Until the early part of the century a great majority of the gill net 
boats were the property of the canners on the River; they were rented to the fishermen 
which made it easier for men of limited means to work in the fishing industry. The effed 
and in fact the purpose of this practice,was increased production in the canneries.

During the early years many of these boats were actually constructed at shipyards in San 
Francisco, although a significant number were built on the Columbia River, and some in 
boatyards operated by the canneries. The subject of this nomination is a gill net boat 
that has always been privately owned. Constructed at the Wilson Shipyards in Astoria, 
Oregon sometime between 1913 and 1916, it was built for one of the owners of the shipyarc 
which no longer exists. In 1917 it was sold to a Mr. Jacobson, who traded his sailboat 
for it because it had a motor. The chain of ownership since then has been established to 
the present.

Salmon fishing is today a million dollar industry in Wahkiakum County, and it was one of 
the earliest commercial activities in the area. Other variations of the gillnet boat have 
come into use, in particular a stern picker with a power operated reel located aft of the 
cabin designed to roll in the net with a minimum of effort. But the basic hull design is 
still preferred as nothing has been developed in over a century that is better suited to 
the purpose of gill net fishing.


